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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

9

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

10
11

MARCIE HAMILTON,
Plaintiff,

12

DEFENDANT JUUL LABS, INC.’S
ANSWER TO PLAINTIFF’S FIRST
AMENDED COMPLAINT

v.

13
14

Case No. 3:20-CV-3710-EMC

JUUL LABS, INC.,
Defendants.

15
16
17
18
19

Defendant Juul Labs, Inc. (“Defendant” or “JLI”) hereby responds to Plaintiff Marcie
Hamilton’s (“Plaintiff” or “Hamilton”) First Amended Complaint as follows:
1.

Answering Paragraph 1, Defendant admits that Plaintiff’s First Amended

20

Complaint was filed in response to the Court’s September 11, 2020 Order (ECF–23) granting in

21

part and denying in part Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss and the Court’s October 28, 2020 Order

22

(ECF–23) on the parties’ Stipulation Regarding Filing of First Amended Complaint. Except as

23

expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining

24

allegation in this Paragraph.
INTRODUCTION

25
26

2.

Answering Paragraph 2, Defendant lacks sufficient information or belief to enable

27

it either to admit or deny Plaintiff’s allegations and legal conclusions regarding alleged actions

28

taken “[a] generation ago [by] the tobacco industry” to “conceal[] its harmful and illegal conduct
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1

. . . and other unlawful practices,” alleged actions by the makers of Pall Mall and Lucky Strike

2

against Jeffrey Wigand in response to him “disclosing information about the industry’s

3

manipulation of nicotine and other public health dangers,” and/or alleged actions by Jeffrey

4

Wigand in allegedly “breach[ing] his NDA,” or the alleged consequences of those actions to “the

5

tobacco industry” and, on that basis, denies generally and specifically, each and every allegation

6

in this Paragraph.

7

3.

Answering Paragraph 3, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

8

only a conclusory assertion that “[s]ome things, apparently, never change,” to which no response

9

is required. To the extent a response is required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically,

10
11

each and every allegation in this Paragraph.
4.

Answering Paragraph 4, Defendant admits that it is owned 35% by Altria Group,

12

Inc. and that Altria Group, Inc. is the parent company of the company that produces Marlboro

13

cigarettes. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

14

every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

15

5.

Answering Paragraph 5, Defendant admits that Plaintiff purports to seek “civil

16

penalties, injunction relief, and a declaration that Defendant’s alleged confidentiality

17

requirements are illegal, unenforceable, and must be changed pursuant to the Private Attorneys

18

General Act (PAGA) and Unfair Competition Law.” Except as expressly admitted, Defendant

19

denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

20

Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that any of JLI’s alleged “confidentiality

21

requirements” violate the law and that Plaintiff is entitled to the relief she seeks or to any relief on

22

her own behalf, on behalf of the State, or on behalf of any allegedly aggrieved employee.

23
24

PARTIES
6.

Answering Paragraph 6, Defendant admits, on information and belief, that Plaintiff

25

is a resident of San Francisco, California. Defendant further admits that Plaintiff was employed

26

by JLI as Director, Program Management, that her employment commenced on April 2, 2018,

27

and that she was informed that her employment was being terminated on March 15, 2019.

28

Defendant admits that Plaintiff reported directly to JLI’s Senior Vice President of Product
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1

Management, who in turn reported to JLI’s Chief Executive Officer. Except as expressly

2

admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in

3

this Paragraph.

4

7.

Answering Paragraph 7, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

5

only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

6

response is required, Defendant admits that Plaintiff brings PAGA claims purporting to act as the

7

State’s proxy under PAGA. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and

8

specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph. Defendant further denies,

9

generally and specifically, that Plaintiff has been aggrieved by any alleged Labor Code

10

violation(s) and that any of JLI’s alleged “confidentiality requirements” violate the law.

11

8.

Answering Paragraph 8, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

12

only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

13

response is required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every allegation in

14

this Paragraph. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that any of JLI’s alleged

15

“confidentiality requirements” violate the law.

16

9.

Answering Paragraph 9, Defendant admits that James Isaacson was employed by

17

JLI as Senior Director, Design Assurance, commencing in May 2018, and that his separation date

18

was November 1, 2019. Defendant further admits that Isaacson reported to JLI’s Chief Quality

19

Officer, who in turn reported to JLI’s Chief Executive Officer. Defendant admits, on information

20

and belief, that Isaacson was a resident of Utah. Defendant admits that Isaacson traveled to and

21

worked at JLI’s offices in San Francisco from time to time during his employment. Defendant

22

admits that, on or around September 29, 2020, Isaacson, through his counsel, provided JLI with

23

notice of his intent to serve as a purported PAGA representative. Defendant lacks sufficient

24

information or belief to enable it either to admit or deny whether, on September 29, 2020,

25

Isaacson provided notice to the Labor Workforce and Development Agency (“LWDA”) of his

26

intent to serve as a purported PAGA representative and, on that basis, denies generally and

27

specifically, such allegations. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and

28

specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph. Defendant further denies,
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1

generally and specifically, that Isaacson has been aggrieved by any alleged Labor Code

2

violation(s) and that Isaacson would have standing to act as a PAGA representative.

3

10.

Answering Paragraph 10, Defendant admits that Plaintiff purports to seek a share

4

of any civil penalties on behalf of and for the benefit of the allegedly aggrieved employees and

5

that Plaintiff also purports to seek public injunctive relief. Except as expressly admitted,

6

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this

7

Paragraph. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff or any other

8

California JLI employee has been aggrieved by any alleged Labor Code violation(s) and that

9

Plaintiff is entitled to the relief she seeks or to any relief on her own behalf, on behalf of the State,

10
11

or on behalf of any allegedly aggrieved employee.
11.

Answering Paragraph 11, Defendant admits that its California employees have

12

collectively worked tens of thousands of pay periods. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant

13

denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

14

Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff or any other California JLI

15

employee has been aggrieved by any alleged Labor Code violation(s).

16

12.

Answering Paragraph 12, Defendant admits that JLI is incorporated in Delaware.

17

Defendant further admits that, in December 2018, Altria invested $12.8 billion in JLI and

18

received a 35% ownership interest in JLI. Defendant also admits that, after making its investment

19

in JLI, Altria appointed K.C. Crosthwaite, who was then an Altria senior executive based in

20

Virginia, as an observer on JLI’s Board of Directors. Defendant lacks sufficient information or

21

belief to enable it either to admit or deny Plaintiff’s allegations that Altria is a Virginia

22

corporation with its principal executive offices located in Virginia, and, on that basis, denies,

23

generally and specifically, such allegations. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies,

24

generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

25

13.

Answering Paragraph 13, Defendant admits that, in September 2019, K.C.

26

Crosthwaite became JLI’s Chief Executive Officer. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant

27

denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

28
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1

14.

Answering Paragraph 14, Defendant admits that, in or around November 2019, JLI

2

began exploring its ownership of its San Francisco office building at 123 Mission Street.

3

Defendant further admits that it currently leases 20,000 square feet or more of office space in

4

Washington, D.C. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically,

5

each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

6

15.

Answering Paragraph 15, Defendant admits that, to the extent that this Paragraph

7

is based on the content of a May 5, 2020 news report by the Wall Street Journal, such report states

8

that JLI has announced that it is moving its corporate headquarters from San Francisco to

9

Washington. D.C. as part of a restructuring. Defendant further admits that this move has already

10

occurred as of the date of this Answer. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally

11

and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

12

16.

Answering Paragraph 16, Defendant admits that JLI announced layoffs in both

13

November 2019 and May 2020. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and

14

specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

15

17.

Answering Paragraph 17, Defendant admits that K.C. Crosthwaite currently

16

resides outside of California and that Mr. Crosthwaite’s primary physical work locations for JLI

17

are in Washington, D.C. and Virginia. Plaintiff’s allegation that “[t]his is especially so in light of

18

the current pandemic” is a conclusion and/or argument to which no response is required.

19

18.

Answering Paragraph 18, Defendant admits that JLI’s former Chief Legal Officer

20

resided outside of California at the time of his employment at JLI and that his primary physical

21

work location was JLI’s Washington, D.C. office.

22

19.

Answering Paragraph 19, Defendant admits that certain of K.C. Crosthwaite’s

23

direct reports, including JLI’s Chief Operations Officer, Chief Quality Officer, and Chief Growth

24

Officer, have residences and primary physical work locations in places other than San Francisco,

25

California. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

26

every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

27
28
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1

Altria have residences and primary physical work locations in places other than San Francisco,

2

California and, on that basis, denies generally and specifically, such allegations. Defendant

3

further denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

4

21.

Answering Paragraph 21, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

5

only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

6

response is required, Defendant admits that it has business operations in locations other than San

7

Francisco, California.

8
9

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
22.

Answering Paragraph 22, Defendant admits that JLI is incorporated in Delaware

10

and that JLI’s corporate headquarters is currently located in Washington, D.C. Defendant further

11

admits, on information and belief, that Plaintiff is a citizen of California. The remaining

12

allegations in this Paragraph make no substantive factual allegations, only legal conclusions

13

and/or legal argument, to which no response is required.

14

23.

Answering Paragraph 23, Defendant admits that venue is proper in the Northern

15

District of California and that JLI conducts business in the Northern District. Defendant further

16

admits, on information and belief, that Plaintiff resides in the Northern District. The remaining

17

allegations in this Paragraph make no substantive factual allegations, only legal conclusions

18

and/or legal argument, to which no response is required.
BACKGROUND

19
20

24.

Answering Paragraph 24, Defendant lacks sufficient information or belief to

21

enable it either to admit or deny Plaintiff’s allegations and legal argument and conclusions that

22

“[i]t is unfortunately well-established that employers rely on illegal NDAs and other unlawful

23

employment requirements to prevent whistleblowing, competition, and speech by their

24

employees,” and, on that basis, denies generally and specifically, such allegations. The remaining

25

allegations in this Paragraph make no substantive factual allegations, only legal conclusions

26

and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a response is required,

27

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this

28

Paragraph.
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1

25.

Answering Paragraph 25, Defendant lacks sufficient information or belief to

2

enable it either to admit or deny Plaintiff’s allegations and conclusions that “[a]rmed with these

3

illegal NDAs and other confidentiality requirements, and in reliance on their terrorizing effect,

4

powerful employers, often with the help of prominent law firms, threaten employees with

5

termination, financial ruin and more if they dare disclose corporate wrongdoing or engage in

6

other relevant protected conduct,” and, on that basis, denies generally and specifically, each and

7

every allegation in this Paragraph.

8
9

26.

Answering Paragraph 26, Defendant admits that JLI has been the subject of certain

government investigations, including investigations related to the use of its products by minors.

10

Defendant further admits that JLI has been the subject of certain administrative and court actions,

11

including actions by government agencies, and including actions related to its relationship with

12

Altria and the alleged health dangers of its products. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant

13

denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

14
15

27.

Answering Paragraph 27, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.

16

FACTS

17

Juul’s Confidentiality and Non-Disparagement Agreement

18

28.

Answering Paragraph 28, Defendant admits that on March 22, 2018, Hamilton

19

accepted an offer to work for JLI as Director, Program Management. Defendant further admits

20

that on April 15, 2018, James Isaacson accepted an offer to work for JLI as Senior Director,

21

Quality Assurance. Defendant admits that Hamilton and Isaacson were asked to sign JLI’s

22

standard Proprietary Information and Invention Assignment Agreement (“PIIAA”) as a condition

23

of their employment, and that their respective offer letters stated, in part, that “this offer, and

24

employment pursuant to this offer, is conditioned upon” . . . “[y]our signed agreement to, and

25

ongoing compliance with, the terms of the enclosed Proprietary Information and Invention

26

Assignment Agreement.” Defendant admits that Hamilton’s and Isaacson’s respective offer

27

letters stated that they were governed by California law. Defendant further admits that other JLI

28

employees have signed substantially similar offer letters to the offer letters signed by Hamilton
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1

and Isaacson. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each

2

and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

3

29.

Answering Paragraph 29, Defendant admits that the Proprietary Information and

4

Invention Assignment Agreement signed by Hamilton states, in part, that “Employee shall at all

5

times during the term of Employee’s employment with the Company and thereafter, hold in

6

strictest confidence, and not use, except for the benefit of the Company, or disclose to any person,

7

firm or corporation without written authorization of the Company’s Board of Directors (the

8

‘Board’), any Confidential Information of the Company.” Defendant further admits that the

9

definition of “Confidential Information” in the Proprietary Information and Invention Assignment

10

Agreement signed by Hamilton includes, among other information, “customers (including, but

11

not limited to, customers of the Company . . . with whom he or she became acquainted during the

12

term of Employee’s employment),” “products,” “markets,” “other business information of the

13

Company,” and “information disclosed by the Company to Employee and information developed

14

or learned by Employee during the course of employment with Company.” Defendant denies that

15

Plaintiff’s characterization of these provisions of the Proprietary Information and Invention

16

Assignment Agreement is accurate. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally

17

and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

18

30.

Answering Paragraph 30, Defendant admits that the Proprietary Information and

19

Invention Assignment Agreement signed by Hamilton states, in part, that “Confidential

20

Information” also includes “all information of which the unauthorized disclosure could be

21

detrimental to the interests of Company, whether or not such information is identified as

22

Confidential Information.” Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of this provision of

23

the Proprietary Information and Invention Assignment Agreement is accurate. Except as

24

expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining

25

allegation in this Paragraph.

26

31.

Answering Paragraph 31, Defendant admits that the Proprietary Information and

27

Invention Assignment Agreement signed by Hamilton states, in part, that “Employee agrees that

28

Employee bears the burden of proving that given information or materials are not Confidential

C U RL E Y , H U RT GE N &
J OHNSRU D L L P
COUNSE LO RS AT LA W
MENLO PAR K

8

ANSWER TO FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
(CASE NO. 3:20-CV-3710-EMC)

Case 3:20-cv-03710-EMC Document 44 Filed 02/10/21 Page 9 of 41

1

Information.” Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of the Proprietary Information

2

and Invention Assignment Agreement is accurate. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant

3

denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

4

32.

Answering Paragraph 32, Defendant admits that the Proprietary Information and

5

Invention Assignment Agreement signed by Hamilton states, in part, that “Employee agrees to

6

execute any proper oath or verify any proper document required to carry out the terms of this

7

Agreement,” and “[i]n the event of the termination of Employee’s employment, Employee hereby

8

covenants to sign and deliver the ‘Termination Certification’ attached hereto as Exhibit C.”

9

Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of the Proprietary Information and Invention

10

Assignment Agreement is accurate. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally

11

and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

12

33.

Answering Paragraph 33, Defendant admits that the version of the Termination

13

Certification attached as Exhibit C to the Proprietary Information and Invention Assignment

14

Agreement signed by Hamilton that is attached as an exhibit to the August 14, 2019 letter to the

15

Labor and Workforce Development Agency that, in turn, is attached as Exhibit A to Hamilton’s

16

First Amended Complaint contains a footer which states, in part, “confidential” and “[a]ny

17

dissemination, copying or use of its contents without the express written authorization of juul

18

labs, inc is strictly prohibited.” Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of the

19

Termination Certification is accurate. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally

20

and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

21

34.

Answering Paragraph 34, Defendant admits that the Proprietary Information and

22

Invention Assignment Agreement signed by Hamilton does not include an express temporal or

23

geographic limitation. Defendant further admits that the Proprietary Information and Invention

24

Assignment Agreement signed by Hamilton states, in part, that JLI “shall have the right to

25

enforce this Agreement . . . by injunction, specific performance or other equitable relief, without

26

bond and without prejudice to any other rights and remedies that the Company may have for a

27

breach of this Agreement.” Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of the Proprietary

28

Information and Invention Assignment Agreement is accurate. Except as expressly admitted,
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1

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this

2

Paragraph.

3

35.

Answering Paragraph 35, Defendant admits that the Proprietary Information and

4

Invention Assignment Agreement signed by Hamilton states, in part, that it is governed by

5

California law, and that “[t]he state and federal courts located in the Northern District of

6

California shall be the sole and exclusive forum for disputes arising out of or relating to this

7

Agreement.” Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of the Proprietary Information and

8

Invention Assignment Agreement is accurate. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies,

9

generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

10

36.

Answering Paragraph 36, Defendant admits that other JLI employees have been

11

asked to sign a Proprietary Information and Invention Assignment Agreement or a Confidentiality

12

and Inventions Assignment Agreement as a condition of their employment with JLI. Except as

13

expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining

14

allegation in this Paragraph.

15
16

37.

every allegation in this Paragraph.
The Termination Certificate

17
18

Answering Paragraph 37, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

38.

Answering Paragraph 38, Defendant admits that, on March 15, 2019, JLI informed

19

Hamilton that her employment was being terminated. Defendant further admits that it asked

20

Hamilton to sign the Termination Certification and that the Termination Certification states, in

21

part, that the employee has “complied with all the terms of the Proprietary Information and

22

Invention Assignment Agreement,” and “[i]n compliance with the Proprietary Information and

23

Invention Assignment Agreement, I will preserve as confidential all trade secrets, confidential

24

knowledge, data or other proprietary information relating to products, processes, knowhow,

25

designs, formulas, developmental or experimental work, computer programs, data bases, other

26

original works of authorship, customer lists, business plans, financial information or other subject

27

matter pertaining to any business of the Company or any of its employees, clients, consultants or

28
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1

licensees.” Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

2

every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

3

39.

Answering Paragraph 39, Defendant admits that Hamilton signed the Termination

4

Certification. Defendant further admits that other former JLI employees have been asked to sign

5

a Termination Certification in connection with their separation from employment with JLI.

6

Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every

7

remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

8
9
10

Juul’s Non-Contractual Policies & Practices
40.

Answering Paragraph 40, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.

11
12

The Written Instruments
41.

Answering Paragraph 41, Defendant admits that JLI has various internal policies,

13

procedures, handbooks, and trainings and that employees are asked to read and acknowledge

14

certain of these internal policies, procedures, handbooks, and trainings. Except as expressly

15

admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in

16

this Paragraph.

17

42.

Answering Paragraph 42, Defendant admits that JLI tracks its employees’ review

18

of certain internal policies, procedures, and training programs and that such tracking may include

19

the date on which the policy, procedure, or training is assigned to the employee for review and the

20

date on which the employee completes review of the assigned materials or course. Except as

21

expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining

22

allegation in this Paragraph.

23

43.

Answering Paragraph 43, Defendant admits that Plaintiff and Isaacson have

24

reviewed and acknowledged certain internal JLI policies, procedures, and trainings during their

25

employment. Defendant further admits that it has policies, procedures, and trainings with the

26

document titles listed in subsections (a) through (w) of Paragraph 43. Defendant denies that

27

Plaintiff’s characterization of these policies as “Confidentiality Policies” is accurate. Except as

28
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1

expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining

2

allegation in this Paragraph.

3

44.

Answering Paragraph 44, Defendant admits that it has had a document titled

4

“Culture & Policy Handbook.” Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of this

5

handbook is accurate. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and

6

specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

7

45.

Answering Paragraph 45, Defendant admits that a version of JLI’s “Culture &

8

Policy Handbook” last updated May 15, 2018 includes provisions regarding overtime, expense

9

reports, benefits, leaves, workplace safety, and other matters. Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s

10

characterization of this handbook is accurate. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies,

11

generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

12

46.

Answering Paragraph 46, Defendant admits that a Social Media provision in

13

versions of JLI’s Employee Guide (also known as the Culture & Policy Handbook) states, in part,

14

that JLI “should not be held liable for any repercussions the employees’ [social media] content

15

may generate.” Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of this provision is accurate.

16

Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every

17

remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

18

47.

Answering Paragraph 47, Defendant admits that a Social Media provision in

19

versions of JLI’s Employee Guide (also known as the Culture & Policy Handbook) states, in part,

20

that “[w]e do not share or discuss our business information publicly,” including “[f]inancial

21

information of any sort;” “[d]esign plans and new product development initiatives;” “[c]ustomer

22

or consumer data;” “Sales, Forecasts, Trends, Future Promotional Plans;” and “[a]ny other non-

23

public data belonging to JUUL Labs,” and “[i]f you have to think about it, don’t share it.”

24

Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of this provision is accurate. Except as

25

expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining

26

allegation in this Paragraph.

27
28
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Answering Paragraph 48, Defendant admits that, in certain circumstances,

employees are asked to refer official inquiries from government regulators or the investment
12
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1

communities to a designated JLI representative. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies,

2

generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

3
4
5

49.

Answering Paragraph 49, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
50.

Answering Paragraph 50, Defendant admits that versions of JLI’s Employee Guide

6

(also known as the Culture & Policy Handbook) include an IT Policy and Procedures provision

7

which defines “Technology Resources” to include, among other things, “all . . . means of

8

electronic communication that are owned by JUUL Labs, that are used on or accessed from JUUL

9

Labs’ premises, or that are used in performing JUUL Labs business.” Defendant further admits

10

that the IT Policy and Procedures states, in part, that “[e]mployees must not: use JUUL Labs’

11

Technology Resources to transmit, receive, or store any information that is discriminatory,

12

harassing, defamatory, obscene, indecent, threatening, or that otherwise could adversely affect

13

any individual, group, or entity (e.g., sexually explicit or racial messages, jokes, or cartoons) . . .

14

in a manner contrary to the best interests of JUUL Labs, in any way that discloses confidential or

15

proprietary information of JUUL Labs or third parties, or for personal or pecuniary gain.”

16

Defendant admits that the IT Policy and Procedures states, in part, that “Confidential Information

17

should not be accessed through JUUL Labs’ Technology Resources in the presence of

18

unauthorized individuals. Similarly, Confidential Information should not be left visible or

19

unattended, and should not be stored in a manner that permits unauthorized access.” Defendant

20

denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of this provision is accurate. Except as expressly admitted,

21

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this

22

Paragraph.

23

51.

24
25
26
27
28
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Answering Paragraph 51, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
52.

Answering Paragraph 52, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
53.

Answering Paragraph 53, Defendant admits that a version of the “Culture & Policy

Handbook” last updated May 15, 2018, which has since been superseded and was not in effect
13
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1

during the applicable statute of limitations period, includes the following language: “You

2

understand that the working conditions, policies, procedures, . . . and benefits described in this

3

handbook are confidential and may not be distributed in any way nor discussed with anyone who

4

is not an employee of JUUL Labs.” Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of this

5

handbook is accurate. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and

6

specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

7

54.

Answering Paragraph 54, Defendant admits that JLI’s “Culture & Policy

8

Handbook” last updated May 15, 2018, asks employees to “add [their] initials to the Culture and

9

Policy Acknowledgement sheet to acknowledge [among other things] the following: . . . That

10

[they] have read and understand the contents of this handbook.” Defendant further admits that

11

subsequent versions of its Employee Guide (also known as the Culture & Policy Handbook)

12

include an Acknowledgement of Receipt which asks employees to “[p]lease sign and date one

13

copy of this acknowledgement and return it to Human Resources. Retain a second copy for your

14

reference.” Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

15

every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

16

55.

Answering Paragraph 55, Defendant admits that, after Plaintiff was informed that

17

her employment was being terminated, she requested copies of certain documents pursuant to

18

California Labor Code Sections 1198.5 and 432. Defendant further admits that, in response to

19

this request, among other documents, JLI provided Plaintiff with a copy of her training report

20

which reflects her review of certain internal JLI policies, procedures, and trainings. Defendant

21

lacks sufficient information or belief to enable it either to admit or deny Plaintiff’s allegations that

22

she requested these records “so that she could better understand her purported obligations to [JLI]

23

with respect to speech, competition, and whistleblowing,” and, on that basis, denies generally and

24

specifically, such allegations. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and

25

specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

26

56.

Answering Paragraph 56, Defendant admits that, on July 28, 2020, Isaacson,

27

through his counsel, requested copies of certain documents pursuant to California Labor Code

28

Sections 1198.5, 226, and 432. Defendant further admits that, in response to this request, among
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1

other documents, JLI provided Isaacson with a copy of his training report which reflects his

2

review of certain internal JLI policies, procedures, and trainings. Except as expressly admitted,

3

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this

4

Paragraph.

5

57.

6
7

Answering Paragraph 57, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
58.

Answering Paragraph 58, Defendant admits that, according to her training report,

8

Plaintiff reviewed a Complaint Handling Procedure on or around January 29, 2019. Defendant

9

further admits that, according to his training report, Isaacson reviewed a Social Media Policy and

10

an External Communications Policy on or around July 12, 2019. Except as expressly admitted,

11

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this

12

Paragraph.

13
14
15
16

JUUL’s Practices
59.

Answering Paragraph 59, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
60.

Answering Paragraph 60, Defendant admits that, to the extent that his Paragraph is

17

based on the content of the July 23, 2020 “Etters Article,” the cited article includes the language

18

quoted by Plaintiff in Paragraph 60, and otherwise denies these allegations. Except as expressly

19

admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in

20

this Paragraph.

21

61.

Answering Paragraph 61, Defendant admits that, on occasion, JLI has prepared for

22

unannounced government inspections of its offices. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant

23

denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

24

62.

Answering Paragraph 62, Defendant admits that, in certain circumstances,

25

employees have been asked to refer official inquiries from government regulators to a designated

26

JLI representative to ensure that the regulators receive accurate information from the subject

27

matter expert who would be most qualified to speak to a particular topic. Defendant further

28

admits that certain employees have received training to prepare for government inspections to
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1

ensure that they are fully prepared to provide responsive, complete, and accurate information

2

when an inspection occurs. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and

3

specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

4

63.

Answering Paragraph 63, Defendant admits that, the extent that this Paragraph is

5

based on the content of the July 23, 2020 “Etters Article,” the cited article includes the language

6

quoted by Plaintiff in Paragraph 63. Defendant further admits that, in anticipation of an

7

inspection, certain employees participated in mock inspections to practice responding to questions

8

and gathering relevant documents to ensure that they would be fully prepared to provide

9

responsive, complete, and accurate information when a regulatory inspection occurred.

10

Defendant admits that these employees were instructed to answer questions truthfully, to provide

11

the regulators with the information and documents requested, to allow the inspectors to guide the

12

inspection, and to avoid volunteering information that had not been requested. Except as

13

expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining

14

allegation in this Paragraph.

15

64.

Answering Paragraph 64, Defendant admits that, on certain occasions and in

16

certain contexts, employees have been asked to refer press inquiries about certain matters to a

17

designated JLI representative for an official statement. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant

18

denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

19
20
21

65.

Answering Paragraph 65, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
66.

Answering Paragraph 66, Defendant lacks sufficient information or belief to

22

enable it either to admit or deny Plaintiff’s allegations that an unspecified individual or

23

individuals at JLI “falsely informed Isaacson that JLI’s products were focused exclusively on

24

harm reduction,” and that “[i]n the fall of 2018, Isaacson wore a JUUL-branded sweatshirt to his

25

daughter’s college campus during a parents weekend. Isaacson found it noteworthy that the

26

sweatshirt was immensely popular amongst college students, and not so popular with his fellow

27

parents,” and, on that basis, denies generally and specifically, such allegations. Defendant also

28

denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.
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1
2
3
4

67.

every allegation in this Paragraph.
68.

Answering Paragraph 68, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.

5
6

Answering Paragraph 67, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

The Standard Release Agreement
69.

Answering Paragraph 69, Defendant admits that, on March 15, 2019, JLI informed

7

Hamilton that her employment was being terminated and offered her a Separation Agreement and

8

Release pursuant to which she would relinquish her operating responsibilities as of

9

March 15, 2019 and which included, among other consideration, a paid leave of absence through

10

April 2, 2019 and payment of an unearned “special bonus.” Defendant further admits that

11

Hamilton’s first tranche of equity was scheduled to vest on April 2, 2019. Except as expressly

12

admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in

13

this Paragraph.

14

70.

Answering Paragraph 70, Defendant admits that, in or around October 2019, JLI

15

informed Isaacson that his employment was being terminated and offered him a Separation

16

Agreement and Release which included, among other terms and consideration, that he would

17

relinquish his operating responsibilities as of October 21, 2019 and his separation would be

18

effective as of November 1, 2019. Defendant further admits that a Senior People Operations

19

Generalist located in San Francisco, California processed Isaacson’s Separation Agreement and

20

Release. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

21

every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

22

71.

Answering Paragraph 71, Defendant admits that the Separation Agreement and

23

Releases offered to Hamilton and Isaacson contained certain identical, or substantially identical,

24

terms. Defendant further admits that Isaacson’s Separation Agreement and Release contains a

25

Utah choice-of-law provision and a binding arbitration provision with arbitration to be conducted

26

in Denver, Colorado. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically,

27

each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

28
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1
2
3

72.

Answering Paragraph 72, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
73.

Answering Paragraph 73, Defendant admits that JLI’s standard Separation

4

Agreement and Release offered to California employees includes a general release of claims and

5

this release specifically references claims arising under the California Fair Employment and

6

Housing Act. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each

7

and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

8
9

74.

Answering Paragraph 74, Defendant admits that JLI’s standard Separation

Agreement and Release includes a provision stating, in part, that “EMPLOYEE agrees to refrain

10

from any disparagement, defamation, libel or slander of EMPLOYER or any of the other

11

Releasees,” and that “Releasees” are defined in the Separation Agreement and Release as

12

including “EMPLOYER and its current or former parents, subsidiaries, related entities and

13

affiliates, and their respective employee benefit plans or funds, officers, directors, shareholders,

14

partners, employees, agents, trustees, administrators, predecessors, successors and assigns.”

15

Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every

16

remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

17

75.

Answering Paragraph 75, Defendant admits that JLI’s standard Separation

18

Agreement and Release includes a provision stating, in part, that the employee “will not disclose

19

the terms, conditions or existence of this Agreement to any person or entity,” with certain

20

exceptions. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

21

every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

22

76.

Answering Paragraph 76, Defendant admits that JLI’s standard Separation

23

Agreement and Release includes a provision stating, in part, that the employee is to sign the

24

Termination Certification attached to the employee’s Proprietary Information and Invention

25

Assignment Agreement. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and

26

specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

27
28
C U RL E Y , H U RT GE N &
J OHNSRU D L L P
COUNSE LO RS AT LA W
MENLO PAR K

77.

Answering Paragraph 77, Defendant admits that Hamilton declined to sign the

Separation Agreement and Release that was offered to her. Defendant further admits that
18
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1

Hamilton’s first tranche of equity did not vest and that she did not receive the unearned “special

2

bonus” or the other consideration offered to her under the Separation Agreement and Release.

3

Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every

4

remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

5

78.

Answering Paragraph 78, Defendant responds that this Paragraph has been stricken

6

pursuant to the Court’s January 27, 2021 Order Granting In Part and Denying In Part JLI’s

7

Motion to Dismiss (ECF–42 at 25:2–4) and, therefore, no answer is required.

8
9
10
11

79.

Answering Paragraph 79, Defendant responds that this Paragraph has been stricken

pursuant to the Court’s January 27, 2021 Order Granting In Part and Denying In Part JLI’s
Motion to Dismiss (ECF–42 at 25:2–4) and, therefore, no answer is required.
80.

Answering Paragraph 80, Defendant admits that Hamilton has certain continuing

12

obligations under the Proprietary Information and Invention Assignment Agreement and

13

Termination Certification that she signed. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies,

14

generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

15

81.

Answering Paragraph 81, Defendant admits that Isaacson signed a Separation

16

Agreement and Release on November 1, 2019. Defendant further admits that, on or around

17

November 12, 2019, JLI announced layoffs. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies,

18

generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.
Juul’s Knowledge

19
20

82.

Answering Paragraph 82, without waiving attorney-client privilege or attorney

21

work product, Defendant admits that legal counsel provided advice in drafting various internal

22

policies, procedures, handbooks, and agreements. Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s

23

characterization of such documents is accurate. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies,

24

generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

25

83.

Answering Paragraph 83, Defendant lacks sufficient information or belief to

26

enable it either to admit or deny Plaintiff’s allegations that an unspecified “Juul employee

27

involved in revising the agreements and policies, and who worked closely with Juul’s C-level

28

executives, informed Hamilton that Juul knew its Confidentiality Policies and employee
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1

agreements were illegal. Nevertheless Juul chose to tighten them further in order to ‘protect the

2

company,’” and, on that basis, denies generally and specifically, such allegations. Defendant

3

denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of its employee agreements and policies is accurate.

4

Defendant also denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this

5

Paragraph.

6

84.

Answering Paragraph 84, Defendant admits that Plaintiff has served JLI with

7

PAGA notices alleging that certain of JLI’s agreements, policies, and alleged practices violate the

8

law. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every

9

remaining allegation in this Paragraph. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that

10

its agreements, policies, and alleged practices violate the law in the manner described by Plaintiff

11

or at all.
Administrative Exhaustion

12
13

85.

Answering Paragraph 85, Defendant admits that a copy of Plaintiff’s first PAGA

14

notice to the Labor Workforce & Development Agency (“LWDA”) dated August 14, 2019 is

15

attached to the First Amended Complaint as Exhibit A. Defendant further admits that a copy of

16

Plaintiff’s second PAGA notice to the LWDA dated June 4, 2020 is attached to the First

17

Amended Complaint as Exhibit B. Defendant admits that a copy of Plaintiff’s third PAGA notice

18

to the LWDA dated August 27, 2020 is attached to the First Amended Complaint as Exhibit C.

19

Defendant admits that a copy of Plaintiff’s and Isaacson’s fourth PAGA notice to the LWDA

20

dated September 29, 2020 is attached to the First Amended Complaint as Exhibit D. Defendant

21

lacks sufficient information or belief to enable it either to admit or deny whether or when Plaintiff

22

and/or Isaacson filed the August 14, 2019, June 4, 2020, August 27, 2020, and/or September 29,

23

2020 PAGA notices with the LWDA and, on that basis, denies generally and specifically, such

24

allegations.

25

86.

Answering Paragraph 86, Defendant lacks sufficient information or belief to

26

enable it either to admit or deny Plaintiff’s allegations that she “served her PAGA notices on

27

[JLI] through certified mail at the same time she filed them with the LWDA” or that “Plaintiff has

28

heard no response from the LWDA stating its intent to investigate the subject matter of these

C U RL E Y , H U RT GE N &
J OHNSRU D L L P
COUNSE LO RS AT LA W
MENLO PAR K

20

ANSWER TO FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
(CASE NO. 3:20-CV-3710-EMC)

Case 3:20-cv-03710-EMC Document 44 Filed 02/10/21 Page 21 of 41

1

PAGA notice,” and, on that basis, denies generally and specifically, each and every allegation in

2

this Paragraph.

3

87.

Answering Paragraph 87, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

4

only a conclusory assertion that “[t] the extent not inconsistent with this Court’s September 11,

5

2020 Order, Plaintiff hereby incorporates the facts and theories set forth in these PAGA notices

6

into this First Amended Complaint,” to which no response is required. To the extent a response is

7

required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every allegation in this

8

Paragraph.

9
10

Pre-Litigation Settlement Efforts
88.

Answering Paragraph 88, Defendant admits that, on September 30 and October 1,

11

2019, the parties entered into a tolling agreement in anticipation of mediation. Except as

12

expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining

13

allegation in this Paragraph.

14

89.

Answering Paragraph 89, Defendant admits that the parties engaged in mediation

15

in January 2020 and that Hamilton and JLI reached a settlement of her individual claims.

16

Defendant further admits that the parties did not resolve the PAGA and UCL claims that were

17

threatened by Hamilton at that time. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally

18

and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

19

90.

Answering Paragraph 90, Defendant admits that the parties continued their pre-

20

litigation settlement negotiations during the first half of 2020 and were unable to reach a

21

resolution of the PAGA and UCL claims that were threatened by Hamilton at that time.

22

91.

Answering Paragraph 91, Defendant admits that, on June 4, 2020, Plaintiff filed

23

her original Complaint in this action. Defendant further admits that the parties’ tolling agreement

24

ended on June 4, 2020.

25
26

92.

Answering Paragraph 92, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.

27
28
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1
2
3
4

Concealment of Evidence
93.

Answering Paragraph 93, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
94.

Answering Paragraph 94, Defendant admits that Labor Code § 432 states that “if

5

an employee or applicant signs any instrument relating to the obtaining or holding employment,

6

he shall be given a copy of that instrument upon request.” The remaining allegations in this

7

Paragraph make no substantive factual allegations, only legal conclusions and/or legal argument,

8

to which no response is required. To the extent a response is required, Defendant denies,

9

generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

10

95.

Answering Paragraph 95, Defendant admits that Labor Code § 1198.5 states, in

11

part, that “every current and former employee, or his or her representative, has the right to inspect

12

and receive a copy of the personnel records that the employer maintains relating to the

13

employee’s performance or to any grievance concerning the employee,” and that “[t]he employer

14

shall make the contents of those personnel records available for inspection to the current or

15

former employee.”

16

96.

Answering Paragraph 96, Defendant admits that Labor Code § 226(b) states, in

17

part, that an employer “shall afford current and former employees the right to inspect or receive a

18

copy of records pertaining to their employment, upon reasonable request to the employer.”

19

97.

Answering Paragraph 97, Defendant admits that the Court’s General Order No. 71

20

sets forth Initial Discovery Protocols for Employment Cases Alleging Adverse Action.

21

Defendant further admits that the categories of documents that a defendant is to produce to a

22

plaintiff in a case subject to the Court’s General Order No. 71 include “workplace policies or

23

guidelines relevant to the adverse action in effect at the time of the adverse action,” and “the table

24

of contents and index of any employee handbook, code of conduct, or policies and procedures

25

manual in effect at the time of the adverse action.” (Part 2, § 2(g) and (h)). Defendant admits

26

that General Order No. 71 states that, in cases subject to this Order, “[t]he defendant’s Initial

27

Discovery shall be provided within 30 days after the defendant has submitted a responsive

28

pleading or motion, unless the assigned judge rules otherwise.” Except as expressly admitted,
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1

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this

2

Paragraph.

3

98.

Answering Paragraph 98, Defendant admits that Plaintiff’s original Complaint

4

alleged that Plaintiff and other allegedly aggrieved employees were adversely affected by claimed

5

confidentiality requirements of JLI and that Paragraph 81 of Plaintiff’s original Complaint alleged

6

“[a]s detailed above, Hamilton has suffered injury in fact and has lost money and property as a

7

result of this unfair competition.” Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and

8

specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

9

99.

Answering Paragraph 99, Defendant admits that, after Plaintiff was informed that

10

her employment was being terminated, she requested copies of certain documents pursuant to

11

California Labor Code Sections 1198.5 and 432. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies,

12

generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

13

100.

Answering Paragraph 100, Defendant admits that, on July 28, 2020, Plaintiff’s

14

counsel requested copies of certain documents on behalf of Isaacson pursuant to California Labor

15

Code Sections 1198.5, 226, and 432. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally

16

and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

17
18
19

101.

Answering Paragraph 101, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
102.

Answering Paragraph 102, Defendant admits that Plaintiff’s counsel requested

20

copies of the documents listed in Isaacson’s training report and that JLI declined to produce such

21

records on the basis that Isaacson was not entitled to them under the Labor Code, including

22

because Isaacson is a former employee and Labor Code Section 432 applies only to current

23

employees, he was not a California employee and Labor Code Section 432 does not have

24

extraterritorial application, and the documents requested were outside the scope of Labor Code

25

Section 432. Defendant further admits that it did not produce the version of the Culture and

26

Policy Handbook that Isaacson acknowledged. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies,

27

generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

28
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1

103.

Answering Paragraph 103, Defendant admits that it has taken the position that

2

General Order No. 71 does not apply to Hamilton’s claims. Except as expressly admitted,

3

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this

4

Paragraph.

5
6

Summary of Extrinsic Evidence Concerning Interpretation of Employment Contracts
104.

Answering Paragraph 104, Defendant admits that other JLI employees have been

7

asked to sign offer letters and a Proprietary Information and Invention Assignment Agreement or

8

a Confidentiality and Inventions Assignment Agreement as a condition of their employment with

9

JLI. Defendant further admits that, upon termination, other JLI employees have been asked to

10

sign a Termination Certification and that certain employees have been offered consideration in

11

exchange for signing a Separation Agreement and Release. Plaintiff’s allegation that “[t]o the

12

extent these Employment Contracts are ambiguous, the Court must look to rules of contract

13

interpretation and extrinsic evidence in order to determine the meaning of the agreements, based

14

on the ‘objective intent’ of the parties” is a legal conclusion, to which no response is required.

15

Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every

16

remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

17

105.

Answering Paragraph 105, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

18

only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

19

response is required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every allegation in

20

this Paragraph.

21

106.

Answering Paragraph 106, Defendant admits that a version of the “Culture &

22

Policy Handbook” last updated May 15, 2018, which has since been superseded and was not in

23

effect during the applicable statute of limitations period, includes the following language: “You

24

understand that the working conditions, policies, procedures, . . . and benefits described in this

25

handbook are confidential and may not be distributed in any way nor discussed with anyone who

26

is not an employee of JUUL Labs.” Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of its

27

employment contracts, handbook, and policies is accurate. Except as expressly admitted,

28
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1

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this

2

Paragraph.

3
4
5

107.

Answering Paragraph 107, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
108.

Answering Paragraph 108, Defendant admits that JLI’s standard Separation

6

Agreement and Release includes express carve-outs for protected activity. Defendant further

7

admits that the Proprietary Information and Invention Assignment Agreement and the

8

Termination Certification signed by Hamilton do not include express carve-outs for protected

9

activity. Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of these carve-outs is accurate. Except

10

as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining

11

allegation in this Paragraph.

12

109.

Answering Paragraph 109, Defendant responds that this Paragraph has been

13

stricken pursuant to the Court’s January 27, 2021 Order Granting In Part and Denying In Part

14

JLI’s Motion to Dismiss (ECF–42 at 25:2–4) and, therefore, no answer is required.

15

110.

Answering Paragraph 110, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

16

only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

17

response is required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every allegation in

18

this Paragraph. Defendant also denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff’s characterization

19

of its employment contracts is accurate.
CAUSES OF ACTION

20
21

111.

Answering Paragraph 111, Defendant admits that Hamilton purports to bring the

22

claims alleged in the First Amended Complaint. Defendant denies, generally and specifically,

23

that Plaintiff has been aggrieved by any alleged Labor Code violation(s), that Plaintiff is entitled

24

to any of the relief she seeks or to any relief on her own behalf, on behalf of the State, or on

25

behalf of any allegedly aggrieved employee, and that such claims are properly maintainable as a

26

representative action under PAGA.

27
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1

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

2

(PAGA VIOLATION OF LABOR CODE § 1102.5(a))

3
4
5

112.

Answering Paragraph 112, Defendant realleges and incorporates by reference its

answers to Paragraphs 1 through 111 as though fully set forth herein.
113.

Answering Paragraph 113, Defendant admits that Labor Code § 1102.5(a) states

6

that an employer “shall not make, adopt, or enforce any rule, regulation, or policy preventing an

7

employee from disclosing information to a government or law enforcement agency, to a person

8

with authority over the employee, or to another employee who has authority to investigate,

9

discover, or correct the violation or noncompliance, or from providing information to, or

10

testifying before, any public body conducting an investigation, hearing, or inquiry, if the

11

employee has reasonable cause to believe that the information discloses a violation of state or

12

federal statute, or a violation of or noncompliance with a local, state, or federal rule or regulation,

13

regardless of whether disclosing the information is part of the employee’s job duties.”

14
15

114.

Answering Paragraph 114, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
The Employment Contracts

16
17

115.

Answering Paragraph 115, Plaintiff’s allegation that “[t]o the extent these

18

Employment Contracts are ambiguous, the Court must look to rules of contract interpretation and

19

extrinsic evidence. The extrinsic evidence demonstrates that the objective intent of the parties

20

was that [JLI’s] policy of requiring employees to sign Employment Contracts violated the

21

requirements of Labor Code § 1102.5(a),” is a legal conclusion and/or legal argument, to which

22

no response is required. To the extent a response is required, Defendant denies, generally and

23

specifically, these allegations. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, each and

24

every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.
Non-Contractual Policies & Practices

25
26
27

116.

Answering Paragraph 116, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
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1

117.

Answering Paragraph 117, Defendant admits that Labor Code § 1102.5(f) states

2

that “in addition to other penalties, an employer that is a corporation or limited liability company

3

is liable for a civil penalty not exceeding ten thousand dollars ($10,000) for each violation of this

4

section.”

5

118.

Answering Paragraph 118, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

6

only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

7

response is required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every allegation in

8

this Paragraph.

9

119.

Answering Paragraph 119, Defendant admits that Plaintiff purports to seek from

10

Defendant, on behalf of herself, the State of California, and all allegedly aggrieved employees,

11

PAGA penalties for each employee on a per pay period basis within the statutory time frame.

12

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff or any other California JLI employee

13

has been aggrieved by an alleged violation of Labor Code § 1102.5 during the applicable

14

statutory period. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff is entitled to

15

the relief she seeks or to any relief on her own behalf, on behalf of the State, or on behalf of any

16

allegedly aggrieved employee, or that the elements of relief referenced are available to Plaintiff

17

on the claims she alleges. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff has

18

standing to bring this claim and that this action is properly maintainable as a representative action

19

under PAGA.

20

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

21

(PAGA VIOLATION OF LABOR CODE §§ 96(k) and 98.6)

22
23
24

120.

Answering Paragraph 120, Defendant realleges and incorporates by reference its

answers to Paragraphs 1 through 119 as though fully set forth herein.
121.

Answering Paragraph 121, Defendant admits that Labor Code § 96(k) assigns to

25

the Labor Commissioner “claims for loss of wages as the result of demotion, suspension, or

26

discharge from employment for lawful conduct occurring during nonworking hours away from

27

the employer’s premises.” Defendant further admits that Labor Code § 2699.5 states that “[t]he

28

provisions of subdivision (a) of Section 2699.3 apply to any alleged violation of the following
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1

provisions: subdivision (k) of Section 96 . . .” Further answering Paragraph 121, Plaintiff’s

2

allegations regarding Doe v. Google constitute legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which

3

no response is required. To the extent a response is required, Defendant denies, generally and

4

specifically, such allegations and denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of the Doe decision is

5

accurate. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining

6

allegation in this Paragraph.

7

122.

Answering Paragraph 122, Defendant admits that Labor Code § 98.6(b)(1) states

8

that “[a]ny employee who is discharged, threatened with discharge, demoted, suspended,

9

retaliated against, subjected to an adverse action, or in any other manner discriminated against in

10

the terms and conditions of his or her employment because the employee engaged in any conduct

11

delineated in this chapter, including the conduct described in subdivision (k) of Section 96, and

12

Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 1101) of Part 3 of Division 2, or because the employee has

13

made a bona fide complaint or claim to the division pursuant to this part” is entitled to certain

14

remedies. Plaintiff’s remaining allegations make no substantive factual allegations, only legal

15

conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a response is

16

required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this

17

Paragraph.
Employment Contracts

18
19
20
21

123.

Answering Paragraph 123, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
124.

Answering Paragraph 124, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

22

only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

23

response is required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every allegation in

24

this Paragraph.
Non-Contractual Policies & Practices

25
26
27

125.

Answering Paragraph 125, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
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1

126.

Answering Paragraph 126, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

2

only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

3

response is required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every allegation in

4

this Paragraph.

5

127.

Answering Paragraph 127, Defendant admits that Plaintiff purports to seek from

6

Defendant, on behalf of herself, the State of California, and all allegedly aggrieved employees,

7

PAGA penalties for each employee on a per pay period basis within the statutory time frame.

8

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff or any other California JLI employee

9

has been aggrieved by an alleged violation of Labor Code §§ 96(k) and/or 98.6 during the

10

applicable statutory period. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff is

11

entitled to the relief she seeks or to any relief on her own behalf, on behalf of the State, or on

12

behalf of any allegedly aggrieved employee, or that the elements of relief referenced are available

13

to Plaintiff on the claims she alleges. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that

14

Plaintiff has standing to bring this claim and that this action is properly maintainable as a

15

representative action under PAGA.

16

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

17

(PAGA VIOLATION OF LABOR CODE §§ 232 AND 1197.5(k))

18
19
20

128.

Answering Paragraph 128, the First Amended Complaint does not include a

Paragraph 128 and, therefore, no answer is required.
129.

Answering Paragraph 129, Defendant responds that Plaintiff’s Third Cause of

21

Action has been dismissed with prejudice pursuant to the Court’s January 27, 2021 Order

22

Granting In Part and Denying In Part JLI’s Motion to Dismiss (ECF–42 at 24:16–18) and,

23

therefore, no answer is required.

24

130.

Answering Paragraph 130, Defendant responds that Plaintiff’s Third Cause of

25

Action has been dismissed with prejudice pursuant to the Court’s January 27, 2021 Order

26

Granting In Part and Denying In Part JLI’s Motion to Dismiss (ECF–42 at 24:16–18) and,

27

therefore, no answer is required.
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1

131.

Answering Paragraph 131, Defendant responds that Plaintiff’s Third Cause of

2

Action has been dismissed with prejudice pursuant to the Court’s January 27, 2021 Order

3

Granting In Part and Denying In Part JLI’s Motion to Dismiss (ECF–42 at 24:16–18) and,

4

therefore, no answer is required.

5
6

Employment Contracts
132.

Answering Paragraph 132, Defendant responds that Plaintiff’s Third Cause of

7

Action has been dismissed with prejudice pursuant to the Court’s January 27, 2021 Order

8

Granting In Part and Denying In Part JLI’s Motion to Dismiss (ECF–42 at 24:16–18) and,

9

therefore, no answer is required.

10

133.

Answering Paragraph 133, Defendant responds that Plaintiff’s Third Cause of

11

Action has been dismissed with prejudice pursuant to the Court’s January 27, 2021 Order

12

Granting In Part and Denying In Part JLI’s Motion to Dismiss (ECF–42 at 24:16–18) and,

13

therefore, no answer is required.
The Non-Contractual Policies and Practices

14
15

134.

Answering Paragraph 134, Defendant responds that Plaintiff’s Third Cause of

16

Action has been dismissed with prejudice pursuant to the Court’s January 27, 2021 Order

17

Granting In Part and Denying In Part JLI’s Motion to Dismiss (ECF–42 at 24:16–18) and,

18

therefore, no answer is required.

19

135.

Answering Paragraph 135, Defendant responds that Plaintiff’s Third Cause of

20

Action has been dismissed with prejudice pursuant to the Court’s January 27, 2021 Order

21

Granting In Part and Denying In Part JLI’s Motion to Dismiss (ECF–42 at 24:16–18) and,

22

therefore, no answer is required.

23

136.

Answering Paragraph 136, Defendant responds that Plaintiff’s Third Cause of

24

Action has been dismissed with prejudice pursuant to the Court’s January 27, 2021 Order

25

Granting In Part and Denying In Part JLI’s Motion to Dismiss (ECF–42 at 24:16–18) and,

26

therefore, no answer is required.

27
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1

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

2

(PAGA VIOLATION OF LABOR CODE § 232.5)

3
4
5

137.

Answering Paragraph 137, Defendant realleges and incorporates by reference its

answers to Paragraphs 1 through 136 as though fully set forth herein.
138.

Answering Paragraph 138, Defendant admits that Labor Code § 232.5(a) states

6

that no employer may “require, as a condition of employment, that an employee refrain from

7

disclosing information about the employer’s working conditions..” Defendant further admits that

8

Labor Code § 232.5(b) states that no employer may “require an employee to sign a waiver or

9

other document that purports to deny the employee the right to disclose information about the

10

employer’s working conditions.”
Employment Contracts

11
12

139.

Answering Paragraph 139, Defendant admits that the version of the Termination

13

Certification attached as Exhibit C to the Proprietary Information and Invention Assignment

14

Agreement signed by Hamilton that is attached as an exhibit to the August 14, 2019 letter to the

15

Labor and Workforce Development Agency that, in turn, is attached as Exhibit A to Hamilton’s

16

First Amended Complaint contains a footer which states, in part, “confidential” and “[a]ny

17

dissemination, copying or use of its contents without the express written authorization of juul

18

labs, inc is strictly prohibited.” Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s characterization of the

19

Termination Certification is accurate. Plaintiff’s allegation that “[t]o the extent these

20

Employment Contracts are ambiguous, the Court must look to rules of contract interpretation and

21

extrinsic evidence. The extrinsic evidence demonstrates that the objective intent of the parties

22

was that the Employment Contracts violate the requirements of Labor Code §§ 232 and 1197.5”

23

is a legal conclusion and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

24

response is required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, these allegations. Defendant

25

further denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.
Non-Contractual Policies & Practices

26
27
28
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1

effect during the applicable statute of limitations period, includes the following language: “You

2

understand that the working conditions, policies, procedures, appeal processes, and benefits

3

described in this handbook are confidential and may not be distributed in any way nor discussed

4

with anyone who is not an employee of JUUL Labs.” Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s

5

characterization of this handbook is accurate. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies,

6

generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

7

141.

Answering Paragraph 141, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

8

only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

9

response is required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every allegation in

10
11

this Paragraph.
142.

Answering Paragraph 142, Defendant admits that Plaintiff purports to seek from

12

Defendant, on behalf of herself, the State of California, and all allegedly aggrieved employees,

13

PAGA penalties for each employee on a per pay period basis within the statutory time frame.

14

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff or any other California JLI employee

15

has been aggrieved by an alleged violation of Labor Code § 232.5 during the applicable statutory

16

period. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff is entitled to the relief

17

she seeks or to any relief on her own behalf, on behalf of the State, or on behalf of any allegedly

18

aggrieved employee, or that the elements of relief referenced are available to Plaintiff on the

19

claims she alleges. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff has

20

standing to bring this claim and that this action is properly maintainable as a representative action

21

under PAGA.

22

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

23

(PAGA VIOLATION OF LABOR CODE § 432.5)

24
25
26

143.

Answering Paragraph 143, Defendant realleges and incorporates by reference its

answers to Paragraphs 1 through 142 as though fully set forth herein.
144.

Answering Paragraph 144, Defendant admits that Labor Code § 432.5 states that

27

no employer “shall require any employee or applicant for employment to agree, in writing, to any

28

term or condition which is known by such employer, . . . to be prohibited by law.”
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1

a. Answering Paragraph 144(a), this Paragraph makes no substantive factual

2

allegations, only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response

3

is required. To the extent a response is required, Defendant denies, generally

4

and specifically, each and every allegation in this Paragraph.

5

b. Answering Paragraph 144(b), this Paragraph makes no substantive factual

6

allegations, only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response

7

is required. To the extent a response is required, Defendant denies, generally

8

and specifically, each and every allegation in this Paragraph.

9

c. Answering Paragraph 144(c), this Paragraph makes no substantive factual

10

allegations, only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response

11

is required. To the extent a response is required, Defendant admits that

12

Government Code § 12964.5 states, in part, that “[i]t is an unlawful

13

employment practice for an employer, in exchange for a raise or bonus, or as a

14

condition of employment or continued employment, to . . . require an

15

employee to sign a nondisparagement agreement or other document that

16

purports to deny the employee the right to disclose information about unlawful

17

acts in the workplace, including, but not limited to, sexual harassment.”

18

Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically,

19

each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

20

d. Answering Paragraph 144(d), Defendant admits that Rule 21F–17 of the

21

Securities and Exchange Commission states, in part, that “no person may take

22

any action to impede an individual from communicating directly with the

23

Commission staff about a possible securities law violation, including

24

enforcing, or threatening to enforce, a confidentiality agreement.” Except as

25

expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

26

every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

27
28
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1

is required. To the extent a response is required, Defendant denies, generally

2

and specifically, each and every allegation in this Paragraph.

3

f. Answering Paragraph 144(f), this Paragraph makes no substantive factual

4

allegations, only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response

5

is required. To the extent a response is required, Defendant denies, generally

6

and specifically, each and every allegation in this Paragraph.

7
8
9

145.

Answering Paragraph 145, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
146.

Answering Paragraph 146, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

10

only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

11

response is required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every allegation in

12

this Paragraph.

13

147.

Answering Paragraph 147, Defendant admits that Plaintiff purports to seek from

14

Defendant, on behalf of herself, the State of California, and all allegedly aggrieved employees,

15

PAGA penalties for each employee on a per pay period basis within the statutory time frame.

16

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff or any other California JLI employee

17

has been aggrieved by an alleged violation of Labor Code § 432.5 during the applicable statutory

18

period. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff is entitled to the relief

19

she seeks or to any relief on her own behalf, on behalf of the State, or on behalf of any allegedly

20

aggrieved employee, or that the elements of relief referenced are available to Plaintiff on the

21

claims she alleges. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff has

22

standing to bring this claim and that this action is properly maintainable as a representative action

23

under PAGA.

24

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

25

(UNFAIR COMPETITION)

26
27

148.

Answering Paragraph 148, Defendant realleges and incorporates by reference its

answers to Paragraphs 1 through 147 as though fully set forth herein.
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1

149.

Answering Paragraph 149, Defendant admits that Business and Professions Code §

2

17200 defines unfair competition to include “any unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business act or

3

practice.” Defendant further admits that Business and Professions Code § 17203 states that a

4

court may “make such orders or judgments, including the appointment of a receiver, as may be

5

necessary to prevent the use or employment . . . of any practice which constitutes unfair

6

competition.” Except as expressly admitted, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each

7

and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

8
9
10
11
12

150.

Answering Paragraph 150, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
151.

Answering Paragraph 151, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
152.

Answering Paragraph 152, Defendant admits that Hamilton has certain continuing

13

obligations under the Proprietary Information and Invention Assignment Agreement and

14

Termination Certification that she signed. Defendant further admits that other JLI employees

15

who have signed a Proprietary Information and Invention Assignment Agreement, a

16

Confidentiality and Invention Assignment Agreement, and/or a Termination Certification have

17

certain continuing obligations under such agreements. Except as expressly admitted, Defendant

18

denies, generally and specifically, each and every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

19

153.

Answering Paragraph 153, Defendant admits that Plaintiff purports to seek a

20

public injunction against JLI. Defendant denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff has

21

standing to seek public injunctive relief. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that

22

Plaintiff is entitled to the relief she seeks.

23

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

24

(LABOR CODE §§ 1101, 1102)

25

154.

Answering Paragraph 154, Defendant admits that Labor Code § 1101 states that

26

“no employer shall make, adopt, or enforce any rule, regulation, or policy: (a) Forbidding or

27

preventing employees from engaging or participating in politics or from becoming candidates for

28
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1

public office [or] (b) Controlling or directing, or tending to control or direct the political activities

2

or affiliations of employees.”

3

155.

Answering Paragraph 155, Defendant admits that Labor Code § 1102 states that

4

“no employer shall coerce or influence or attempt to coerce or influence his employees through or

5

by means of threat of discharge or loss of employment to adopt or follow or refrain from adopting

6

or following any particular course or line of political action or political activity.”

7
8
9

The Employment Contracts
156.

Answering Paragraph 156, Plaintiff’s allegation that “[t]o the extent these

Employment Contracts are ambiguous, the Court must look to rules of contract interpretation and

10

extrinsic evidence. The extrinsic evidence demonstrates that the objective intent of the parties

11

was that Juul’s policy of requiring employees to sign the Employment Contracts violated the

12

requirements of Labor Code §§ 1101 and 1102” is a legal conclusion and/or legal argument, to

13

which no response is required. To the extent a response is required, Defendant denies, generally

14

and specifically, these allegations. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, each and

15

every remaining allegation in this Paragraph.

16
17
18
19

The Employment Contracts
157.

Answering Paragraph 157, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and

every allegation in this Paragraph.
158.

Answering Paragraph 158, this Paragraph makes no substantive factual allegations,

20

only legal conclusions and/or legal argument, to which no response is required. To the extent a

21

response is required, Defendant denies, generally and specifically, each and every allegation in

22

this Paragraph.

23

159.

Answering Paragraph 159, Defendant admits that Plaintiff purports to seek from

24

Defendant, on behalf of herself, the State of California, and all allegedly aggrieved employees,

25

PAGA penalties for each employee on a per pay period basis within the statutory time frame.

26

Defendant denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff or any other California JLI employee

27

has been aggrieved by an alleged violation of Labor Code §§ 1101 or 1102 during the applicable

28

statutory period. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff is entitled to
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1

the relief she seeks or to any relief on her own behalf, on behalf of the State, or on behalf of any

2

allegedly aggrieved employee, or that the elements of relief referenced are available to Plaintiff

3

on the claims she alleges. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff has

4

standing to bring this claim and that this action is properly maintainable as a representative action

5

under PAGA.

6
7

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
Responding to the Prayer for Relief in the First Amended Complaint, Defendant denies,

8

generally and specifically, that Plaintiff or any other California JLI employee has been aggrieved

9

by an alleged violation of Labor Code §§ 1102.5, 96(k), 98.6, 232.5, 432.5, and/or 1101 or 1102

10

during the applicable statutory period. Defendant further denies, generally and specifically, that

11

Plaintiff is entitled to the relief she seeks or to any relief on her own behalf, on behalf of the State,

12

or on behalf of any allegedly aggrieved employee, or that the elements of relief referenced are

13

available to Plaintiff on the claims she alleges. Defendant further denies, generally and

14

specifically, that this action is properly maintainable as a representative action under PAGA.

15

Defendant also denies, generally and specifically, that Plaintiff has standing to seek public

16

injunctive relief or that Plaintiff is entitled to the injunctive relief she seeks. Defendant denies,

17

generally and specifically, that Plaintiff is entitled to attorneys’ fees and costs under PAGA,

18

California Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5, or any other applicable law or doctrine.

19

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

20

WHEREFORE, Defendant asserts the following affirmative defenses and prays for

21

judgment as hereinafter set forth:

22

FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

23

(Statute of Limitations)

24

As a separate and affirmative defense to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint and to each

25

claim alleged therein, Defendant alleges that Plaintiff’s claims and the claims of the allegedly

26

aggrieved employees may be barred in whole or in part by one or more of the applicable statute(s)

27

of limitations, including, without limitation, California Code of Civil Procedure § 340(a) and

28

California Business & Professions Code § 17208.
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1

SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

2

(Lack of Standing – PAGA)

3

As a separate and affirmative defense to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint and to the

4

First, Second, Fourth, Fifth, and Seventh Claims for Relief alleged therein, Defendant alleges that

5

these claims are barred in whole or in part to the extent that Plaintiff lacks standing to pursue any

6

such claims, including, but not limited to, because Plaintiff was not personally affected by any of

7

the alleged Labor Code violations forming the predicates for her Private Attorneys General Act

8

(“PAGA”) claims during the applicable statute of limitations period.

9

THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

10

(Lack of Standing – Injunctive Relief)

11

As a separate and affirmative defense to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint and to each

12

claim alleged therein, Defendant alleges that the First Amended Complaint and each claim

13

asserted therein is barred in whole or in part to the extent that Plaintiff lacks standing to pursue

14

injunctive relief, including, but not limited to, because Plaintiff has not suffered an actual injury

15

sufficient to establish standing under the Unfair Competition Law (California Business &

16

Professions Code §§ 17200 et seq.), and/or because Plaintiff cannot establish a real and

17

immediate threat of injury sufficient to satisfy the standing requirement under Article III of the

18

United States Constitution for obtaining injunctive relief.

19

FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

20

(Preemption)

21

As a separate and affirmative defense to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint and to each

22

claim alleged therein, Defendant alleges that Plaintiff’s claims and/or the claims of some or all of

23

the allegedly aggrieved employees are preempted, in whole or in part, by applicable federal law,

24

including but not limited to the National Labor Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 151, et seq.

25

FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

26

(Failure to Exhaust Administrative Requirements)

27
28
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1

the claims of Plaintiff and the allegedly aggrieved employees may be barred, in whole or in part,

2

because the named Plaintiff failed to give timely and sufficient notice of the alleged statutory

3

violations to the California Labor and Workforce Development Agency and to Defendant, as

4

required by California Labor Code § 2699.3, or otherwise failed to exhaust available

5

administrative remedies under the Private Attorneys General Act ("PAGA"), California Labor

6

Code §§ 2698 et seq.

7

SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

8

(Avoidable Consequences)

9

As a separate and affirmative defense to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint and to each

10

claim alleged therein, Defendant alleges that the claims brought by Plaintiff and/or the allegedly

11

aggrieved employees are barred, in whole or in part, under California law by the doctrine of

12

avoidable consequences on the grounds that they unreasonably failed to make use of Defendant’s

13

practices and/or procedures by failing to timely and properly report any allegedly unlawful

14

agreements, policies, and/or practices alleged in the First Amended Complaint and that

15

reasonable use of such opportunities would have prevented some, if not all, of the alleged injuries

16

and/or penalties claimed in this action.

17

SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

18

(Releases)

19

As a separate and affirmative defense to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint and to each

20

claim alleged therein, Defendant alleges that the claims brought by Plaintiff and/or the allegedly

21

aggrieved employees are barred, in whole or in part, to the extent that individuals who Plaintiff

22

wishes to represent may have released, through a separation or settlement agreement, some or all

23

of the claims against Defendant that are being asserted in Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint.

24

EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

25

(Constitutional Defense to Penalties)

26

As a separate and affirmative defense to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint and to the

27

First, Second, Fourth, Fifth, and Seventh Claims for Relief alleged therein, Defendant alleges that

28

any award of penalties to Plaintiff and the allegedly aggrieved employees would be so
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1

disproportionate to the harm alleged to violate due process and the excessive fines and cruel and

2

unusual punishment clauses of the Constitutions of the United States and the State of California.

3

NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

4

(Unjust, Arbitrary and Oppressive, or Confiscatory Penalties)

5

As a separate and affirmative defense to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint, and to the

6

First, Second, Fourth, Fifth, and Seventh Claims for Relief alleged therein, neither Plaintiff nor

7

any allegedly aggrieved employee is entitled to recover any civil penalties because, under the

8

circumstances of this case, any such recovery would be unjust, arbitrary and oppressive, or

9

confiscatory, within the meaning of California Labor Code § 2699. Further, if such penalties are

10

awarded at all, they should be reduced under California Labor Code § 2699(e).

11

TENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

12

(Mixed Motives/Same Decision)

13

As a separate and affirmative defense to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint, and to each

14

and every claim for relief alleged therein, to the extent that any allegedly aggrieved employee

15

establishes that retaliation was a substantial motivating factor in any decisions affecting such

16

allegedly aggrieved employee’s employment, which they were not, legitimate reasons, standing

17

alone, would have induced Defendant to make the same employment decisions.

18

ELEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

19

(Labor Code Section 1102.6)

20

As a separate and affirmative defense to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint, and to the

21

First Claim for Relief alleged therein, Defendant alleges that, to the extent any allegedly

22

aggrieved employee demonstrates by a preponderance of the evidence that an activity proscribed

23

by Labor Code Section 1102.5 was a contributing factor in any alleged prohibited action against

24

such allegedly aggrieved employee, Defendant can demonstrate by clear and convincing evidence

25

that the alleged action would have occurred for legitimate, independent reasons even if such

26

allegedly aggrieved employee had not engaged in activities protected by Labor Code Section

27

1102.5.
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1

TWELFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

2

(Representative Action Unmanageable)

3

As a separate and affirmative defense to Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint and to

4

each claim alleged therein, Defendant alleges that Plaintiff’s request for representative action

5

treatment should be denied because any such trial would be unmanageable, and liability, if any, to

6

each member of the group of allegedly aggrieved employees may not be determined by a single

7

fact finder or on a group-wide basis, and therefore allowing this action to proceed as a

8

representative action would violate Defendant’s rights to due process.

9

THIRTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

10

(Defenses Apply To All Aggrieved Employees)

11

In the event that a PAGA representative action should be allowed, Defendant incorporates by

12

reference and re-alleges all of its defenses in response to Plaintiff’s allegations with respect to

13

each and every allegedly aggrieved employee.

14

WHEREFORE, Defendant prays for judgment as follows:

15

1.

16
17
18

That Plaintiff and the allegedly aggrieved employees take nothing by the First

Amended Complaint;
2.

That judgment be entered against Plaintiff and the allegedly aggrieved employees,

and in favor of Defendant on all claims;

19

3.

That Defendant be awarded its attorneys’ fees under applicable law;

20

4.

That Defendant be awarded costs of suit herein; and

21

5.

For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

22
23

Dated: February 10, 2021

CURLEY, HURTGEN & JOHNSRUD LLP

24
By /s/ Brian L. Johnsrud
BRIAN L. JOHNSRUD
Attorneys for Defendant
JUUL LABS, INC.

25
26
27
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